ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR 

1. The Circuit Court ofMercer County, the Honorable William Sadler presiding, 

committed error by incorrectly interpreting West Virginia statutory law and concluding that a 

municipal court judge has the authority to order an animal be destroyed. 

2. The Circuit Court ofMercer County, the Honorable William Sadler presiding, 

committed error by denying Petitioner Estella Robinson's appeal from a municipal court decision 

without deciding whether the .rp.unicipal court judge's factual decision was proper. The Circuit 

Court's decision deprived Petitioner Estella Robinson an opportunity to have an expert's opinion 

considered by a fact-finder. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Estella Robinson was charged with having a dangerous animal in violation of the 

Municipal Code of the City ofBluefield, and with the failure to confme an animal (a different 

animal than the one involved in the fust charge). Estella Robinson, represented by an attorney 

pled guilty and in the plea agreement agreed to pay fines, but did not agree to having her dog 

destroyed. The issue ofthe destruction ofthe dog was not a part ofthe plea agreement. 

At the time the Municipal Court ordered the dog to be destroyed, Estella Robinson, 

through counsel, requested time to either have the dog examined to determine whether the dog 

was indeed a vicious dog or to locate a placement for the dog outside of the city limits of the City 

of Bluefield. 

The Municipal Judge granted Estella Robinson time to obtain an expert's opinion and to 

locate a placement outside the city limits of the City ofBluefield. Both Estella Robinson and her 

counsel believed Estella Robinson had the option of obtaining either an evaluation of the dog or 

a placement for the dog outside the city limits ofBluefield. When Estella Robinson and her 
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counsel presented the Municipal Court with a placement outside the city limits of the City of 

Bluefield, said placement being with an adult son of Estella Robinson who lives in the 

Charleston area, the Municipal Court refused to let the dog be released to the adult son because 

there was no expert opinion stating the dog was not vicious. An expert's opinion was obtained, 

and the expert deemed the dog not to be vicious, but recommended the dog be placed with 

someone other than Estella Robinson due to Estella Robinson residing in a location not suitable 

for a dog. The opinion was submitted to the Circuit Court ofMercer County as part of a Motion 

filed with the Circuit Court, and the Motion and the expert opinion attachment is a part of the 

record and the appendix in this matter. 

Upon appeal to the Circuit Court ofMercer County, the Circuit Court Judge, the 

Honorable William Sadler, on July 24,2013, ruled that a municipal court judge did indeed 

possess the authority to order an animal be destroyed, but did not conduct a hearing as to the 

facts of the viciousness of the dog. Therefore, Estella Robinson was denied an opportunity to 

have the expert's opinion concerning the dog considered by a fact-fmder during a hearing. 

The Circuit Court denied Estella Robinson's appeal, and upheld the Municipal Court's 

order to destroy the dog. Estella Robinson timely filed a Notice of Intent to Appeal with the 

Supreme Court ofAppeals, and the Order to destroy the dog has been stayed for the duration of 

this appeal. The dog is currently impounded at the Mercer County Animal Shelter. 

Estella Robinson now appeals the Circuit Court ofMercer County's decision upholding 

the Order of the Municipal Court ofthe City ofBluefield that Estella Robinson's dog be 

destroyed. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 
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The Circuit Court of Mercer County, the Honorable William Sadler, erred when said 

Judge ruled that municipal judges have the authority to order dogs be destroyed, and erred when 

the Court refused to conduct a hearing for the court to make a determination of whether the facts 

warrant the destr4uction of the dog in question. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Petitioner asserts that oral argument pursuant to Rule 18(a) is necessary. 

Petitioner also asserts that this matter should be set for Rule 19 Argument, because this 

case involves assignments of error in the application of settled law. A memorandum decision is 

not appropriate. 

The minimum time limit is sufficient. 

ARGUMENT 

1. The Circuit Court of Mercer County, the Honorable William Sadler presiding, erred by 
ruling that a municipal court judge has the authority to order a dog be destroyed 
pursuant to a vicious animal ordinance. 

The Supreme Court ofAppeals of West Virginia, in State v. Cavallaro, 210 W. Va. 237, 

557 S.E.2d 291 (2001), stated the appropriate standard ofreview for this issue: 

"We have held that "[w]here the issue on an appeal from the circuit court is 
clearly a question oflaw or involving an interpretation of a statute, we apply a de novo 
standard of review." Syl. pt. 1, Chrystal R.M v. Charlie A.I., 194 W.Va. 138,459 S.E.2d 
415 (1995)." 557 S.E.2d at 292-93. 

Estella Robinson was charged in the Municipal Court of the City of Bluefield with having 

violated what is now codified as Section 4-49 of the Municipal Code of the City of Bluefield., 

said section being entitled "Dangerous Animals" 

Section 4-49 of the Municipal Code of the City ofBluefield reads: 

"No person shall own, keep or harbor any dangerous animal known by him to be 
vicious, dangerous, or in the habit of biting or attacking persons, whether or not such dog 
wears a tag or muzzle, and upon satisfactory proof that such animal is vicious, 
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dangerous, or in the habit of biting or attacking person, municipal judge may order any 
police officer or the wjmal control officer to cause such animal to be killed. Vicious or 
dangerous animals are declared to be a public nuisance and a menace to the public 
safety." 

Estella Robinson pled guilty, and was ordered to pay a fine. The municipal judge also 

ordered the dog to be destroyed, which was not part of the plea agreement. 

Defendant Estella Robinson timely appealed the Order to destroy the dog, and the matter 

was assigned to the Circuit Court of Mercer County, the Honorable William Sadler presiding. 

The Circuit Court held a status hearing on July 1,2013, in this matter, and ordered 

another hearing on July 24,2013. The Circuit Court stated the Court would consider at that time 

whether the Municipal Judge of the Municipal Court of the City ofBluefield possessed the 

authority to order a dog to be destroyed. 

Section 58 of the Municipal Code of the City ofBluefield reads: 

"The board of directors shall have authority to pass all ordinances not in conflict 
with the Constitution and laws ofthe United States, or of this State, which shall be 
necessary and proper to carry into effect any power, authority, capacity or jurisdiction 
which is or shall be granted to, or vested in, the said city, or in the board of directors or 
any officer of said city; and to provide for the enforcement ofany and all of their 
ordinances by reasonable fmes and penalties, or by imprisoning the offender or offenders 
violating such ordinances and by compelling them to labor without compensation, at any 
public works or improvements undertaken by said city, or by any or all of the said modes; 
provided, however, that no person shall be imprisoned or compelled to labor as aforesaid 
more than thirty days or fmed more than a fine authorized for a similar offense by the 
West Virginia Code, or fined more than five hundred dollars for any offense not 
appearing in the West Virginia Code." 

Section 19-20-20 of the West Virginia Code reads: 

"Except as provided in section twenty-one of this article, no person shall own, 
keep or harbor any dog known by him to be vicious, dangerous, or in the habit of biting 
or attacking other persons, whether or not such dog wears a tag or muzzle. Upon 
satisfactory proof before a circuit court or magistrate that such dog is vicious, dangerous, 
or in the habit of biting or attacking other persons or other dogs or animals, the judge may 
authorize the humane officer to cause such dog to be killed." 
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It is clear that Section 4-49 ofthe Municipal Code of the City of Bluefield conflicts with 

the Section 19-20-20 of the West Virginia Code. 

The City of Bluefield is not without a remedy. lfthe City of Bluefield has a "vicious 

animal" case in which the City of Bluefield wants the animal destroyed, the City ofBluefield 

should simply file the case in Magistrate Court, as the City already does when the City wants to 

see a Defendant incarcerated for over thirty (30) days. 

The City of Bluefield argued in it's response to Estella Robinson that West Virginia Code 

Section 8-12-5(26) authorizes municipal courts to destroy vicious animals. The pertinent portions 

of 8-12-5 and subsection (26) reads: 

"In addition to the powers and authority granted by: (i) The Constitution of this 
state; (ii) other provisions of this chapter; (iii) other general law; and (iv) any charter, and 
to the extent not inconsistent or in conflict with any of the foregoing except special 
legislative charters, every municipality and the governing body thereof shall have plenary 
power and authority therein by ordinance or resolution, as the case may require, and by 
appropriate action based thereon: 

(26) To regulate or prohibit the keeping of animals or fowls and to provide for the 
impounding, sale or destruction ofanimals or fowls kept contrary to law or found running 
at large;" 

But the above section merely gives the City of Bluefield and its governing body, i.e. City 

Council, the ability to pass an ordinance concerning a vicious dog that is not "inconsistent or in 

conflict with any law of the State ofWest Virginia. The section does not mention a municipal 

court. 

The City ofBluefield has provided "for the destruction of animals" with an ordinance 

that is inconsistent and in conflict with the West Virginia Code, which says, under Section 19

20-20 of the West Virginia Code that only circuit court judges or magistrates have the 

jurisdiction to order the destruction of a vicious dog. 
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To read City of Bluefield Municipal Code Section 4-49, and West Virginia Code Sections 

8-12-5(26) and 19-20-20 any other way violates at least two axioms of statutory construction 

recognized and followed by the West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals. 

The Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia, in State Ex ReI. Graney v. Sims, 105 

S.E.2d 886, 144 W.Va. 72 (1958), applied the statutory interpretation doctrine ofpari materia by 

stating: 

"'All statutes in pari materia should be read and construed together, as if they 
formed parts of the same statute and were enacted at the same time, and where there is a 
discrepancy or disagreement among them such interpretation should be given as that all 
may, ifpossible, stand together.' 17 M.J., Statutes, § 40. Many decisions of this Court are 
cited in support of this statement. The provisions in Section (13a) 'Provided, that all 
officials and employees shall be paid at least once every thirty-one days.', and Code, 6
7-1, relate to the same subject matter, and are not in substance inconsistent with each 
other. Therefore, they are in pari materia." 144 W.Va. 72, 80-81, 105 S.E.2d 886,892. 

The Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia applied the same doctrine again, as it 

has many times, in FruehaufCorp. v. Huntington Moving and Storage Co., 217 S.E.2d 907, 159 

W.Va 14 (1975): 

"This Court has consistently held that statutes relating to the same subject matter 
must be read and applied together regardless of whether reference is made by one to 
the other. State ex reI. West Virginia Board o/Education v. Miller, 153 W.Va. 414, 168 
S.E.2d 820 (1969); State v. Condry, 139 W.Va. 827,83 S.E.2d 470 (1954). Statutes 
which relate to the same persons or things, or to the same class ofpersons or things, or 
statutes which have a common purpose will be regarded in Pari materia to assure 
recognition and implementation of the legislative intent. State ex reI. Slatton v. Boles, 
147 W.Va. 674, 130 S.E.2d 192 (1963); State ex rei. Graney & Fordv. Sims, 144 W.Va. 
72,105 S.E.2d 886 (1958)." 217 S.E.2d at 911-12 (1975). 

In the matter at hand, there is a statute that allows municipalities to pass ordinances 

regulating vicious animals and a statute that says only magistrates and circuit court judge may 

order a dog or animal destroyed. Reading the two statutes together creates two scenarios: 1) the 

two statutes are in conflict or 2) municipalities that want an animal destroyed for violation ofan 

ordinance must go to magistrate or circuit court to have the animal destroyed. 
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A second rule of statutory interpretation should also be applied here. The maxim 

expressio unius est exc!usio alterius is pertinent here. The Supreme Court of Appeals of West 

Virginia, in Phillips v. Larry's Drive-In Pharmacy, Inc., 220 W. Va. 484, 492, 647 S.E.2d 920, 

928 (2007) applied said rule: 

"W.Va. Code, 55-7B-2(c) defmes "health care provider" as one who is licensed to 
provide "health care or professional health care services," and gives a list ofprofessionals 
and businesses intended to be covered by the MPLA. The list does not include 
pharmacies, and this Court has previously recognized that "[i]n the interpretation of 
statutory provisions the familiar maxim expressio unius est exclusio alterius, the express 
mention of one thing implies the exclusion of another, applies." Syllabus Point 3, 
Manchin v. Dunfee, 174 W.Va. 532, 327 S.E.2d 710 (1984). See also, State ex reI. RifJle 
v. Ranson, 195 W.Va. 121, 128,464 S.E.2d 763, 770 (1995) ("Expressio unius est 
exclusio alterius (express mention ofone thing implies exclusion ofall others) is a well
accepted canon of statutory construction.") (citing Brockway Glass Co. Inc., Glassware 
Div. v. Caryl, 183 W.Va. 122,394 S.E.2d 524 (1990); Dotts v. Taressa J.A., 182 W.Va. 
586,591,390 S.E.2d 568, 573 (1990)). The expressio unius maxim is premised upon an 
assumption that certain omissions from a statute by the Legislature are intentional. As the 
Court explained in RifJle, "[i]fthe Legislature explicitly limits application of a doctrine or 
rule to one specific factual situation and omits to apply the doctrine to any other situation, 
courts should assume the omission was intentional; courts should infer the Legislature 
intended the limited rule would not apply to any other situation." 195 W.Va. at 128, 464 
S.E.2d at 770." 647 S.E.2d at 928 (2007). 

In the matter now before the Court, since the Legislature did not include municipal 

judges in Code Section 19-20-20, when the Legislature authored said Code Section, the 

Legislature intended to limit the authorities who had jurisdiction or authority to order an animal 

be destroyed to circuit court judges and magistrates. 

If the Supreme Court of Appeals affinns the Circuit Court's decision that Municipal 

Judges have the authority to order a dog be destroyed, a group of individuals will be given the 

power to deprive West Virginia citizens that live within municipal boundaries of not merely 

personal property, but of beloved pets. And among this group of,individuals are many who have 

no real legal training but instead have been hired by a city or town to conduct traffic ticket 

hearings. 
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This Court needs to consider that Municipal Court Judges are almost always employees 

of the cities or towns wherein the judge's employer is a party to the action before the municipal 

judge, and the municipal judges are not really accountable to any electorate body. In some West 

Virginia towns and hamlets the municipal judge is still the mayor or an otherwise city-employed 

individual. 

Clearly, when the Legislature mandated that decisions to destroy animals should be made 

by Circuit Court Judges or Magistrates, the Legislature did not intend for such decisions to also 

be made by Municipal Court Judges. 

The Circuit Court also stated the Court wanted the parties to brief the question whether 

the Circuit Court could modify a sentence imposed by a municipal court as a result of a plea. 

However, in this case the portion of the sentence Estella Robinson is now appealing, the 

plea agreement did not address the issue ofthe destruction of the animal. 

At the status hearing conducted by the Circuit Court on July 1, 2013, the City Attorney 

for the City ofBluefield, acknowledged that appealing the order of the destruction of the dog 

was contemplated by the plea agreement: 

"THE COURT: The first ... first question is whether or not I have the authority to 
modify the order from ... from City Court. And the second is if so be ready uh, be 
prepared to address any request for modification. 

MR. LINKOUS: Because the .. .1 mean, the ... the City agree to let her appeal the 
destruction of the dog. That's why it was stayed and why we got ...were allowed to get an 
opinion and all of that stuff. 

MR. COCHRAN: Your Honor, I don't want to put the Court in the position of 
providing an advisory opinion here but honestly between the issues involved between the 
City and the County on some new issues, uh I wouldn't object at all to let this Court here 
[sic] whether or not the City has the jurisdiction to order that the dog be destroyed and 
that the County be the one to destroy it." Status Hearing Transcript, July 1, 2013, pages 6 
and 7. 

The Circuit Court then asked: 
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"THE COURT: But is the .. .is the County taking the position that they don't have 
to put down animals that you all-

MR. COCHRAN: The County is taking the position that City Court doesn't have 
authority to order destruction of the dog." Status Hearing Transcript, July 1, 2013~ page 
8. 

To place the above discussion in context, the City of Bluefield passed an ordinance 


addressing the type of dog commonly called "pit bulls", after Estella Robinson was charged as 


she was is in this case, and there is an ongoing issue between the City of Bluefield and the 


Mercer County Commission concerning the ordinance. Estella Robinson's case does not involve 


the new ordinance. 


Nevertheless, generally Section 8-34-1 of the West Virginia Code addresses a 

Defendant's right to appeal a decision from a municipal court. And Section 8-34-1 (h) ofthe 

West Virginia Code appears to be the only statute section that addresses the appeal of a plea in 

municipal court. Said statute reads: 

"(h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, there shall 

be no appeal from a plea ofguilty where the defendant was represented by counsel at the 

time the plea was entered: Provided, That the defendant shall have an appeal from a plea 

ofguilty where an extraordinary remedy would lie or where the mayor or municipal court 

judge lacked jurisdiction." 


Therefore, if a municipal court judge lacks the jurisdiction to order an animal destroyed, 

some type ofextraordinary remedy would allow an aggrieved dog owner relief and a Circuit 

Court could reverse such a decision, even when the decision is part of a plea or results from a 

plea hearing. In the matter now before this Court, Estella Robinson never agreed, as part ofher 

plea, for her dog to be destroyed 

2. The Circuit Court erred by not conducting a hearing to determine whether the dog in 

question is in fact a vicious dog that should be destroyed. 


, 	 I 
I 

I 
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On July 24,2013, the Circuit Court of Mercer County conducted a hearing to hear 

arguments whether the Municipal Court Judge for the Municipal Court of Bluefield had the 

authority to order a dog be destroyed. 

The Circuit Court found that the Municipal Court judge did have authority to order a dog 

be destroyed. But the Circuit Court did not finish the process by conducting a hearing wherein 

the Circuit Court heard evidence as to whether the dog in question should be destroyed. 

In essence, there are two parts to this case, i.e. whether the municipal court had the 

authority to order the dog be destroyed, and whether the Municpal Court judge's decision to 

order the dog be destroyed was supported by the proper amount of evidence and whether there 

was any error made in the decision process. 

The Circuit Court ofMercer County only answered the first part of this case, i.e. did the 

Municipal Court Judge possess the authority and/or the jurisdiction to order the dog be 

destroyed. 

When the Circuit Court only answered the fIrst part of the issue before the Circuit Court, 

Estella Robinson, through counsel, filed a Motion For Additional Hearing with the Circuit Court, 

but the Circuit Court denied the Motion without issuing any Order or decision. The Circuit Court 

basically ignored the Motion for Additional Hearing. 

The Motion for Additional Hearing had an attachment, the expert's opinion that the dog 

in question is not a vicious dog that warrants destruction. As a result of the Circuit Court's denial

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