III. STA TEMENT OF THE CASE 

The Mercer County Circuit Court's Order Dening (sic) Appeal, attached to 

the Petitioner's Appendix as Appendix Item No.2, is missing pages 2, 4, and 6 of the 

original Order. Therefore, the Respondent is providing the Court's findings below and 

attaching a complete copy of the Circuit Court's Order to this Response, attached 

hereto as Exhibi t No.1. 

The Respondent agrees with the Circuit Court's Findings of Fact and 

Procedural History as cited in the Court's Order titled "Background and Procedural 

History" in pages 2 and 3 of the Court's Order, including the Court's finding that at the

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

460 (2001). However, questions of law are reviewed de novo. [d. A circuit court's 

interpretation of the West Virginia Constitution is a legal question which is included in 

this de novo standard. Cat/le A. v. Doddridge County Bd. ofEduc., 200 W. Va. 521, 527, 490 

S.E.2d 340, 346 (1997). The Supreme Court of Appeals applies a de novo standard of 

review on questions involving an interpretation of a statute. Ashby v. City of Fairmoll( 

216 W. Va. 527, 607 S.E. 2d 856 (2004). 

Thus, questions of law and the circuit court's interpretations of the West 

Virginia Constitution and of West Virginia statutes are subject to a de novo review, 

while the Circuit Court's factual findings in this matter should be reviewed under a 

clearly erroneous standard. 

2. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT WAS CORRECT IN CONCLUDING 
THAT WEST VIRGINIA MUNICIPALITIES HAVE THE 
AUTHORITY, BY ORDINANCE, TO ORDER A VICIOUS 
ANIMAL TO BE DESTROYED. . 

The Mercer County Circuit Court was correct in its conclusion that the 

Municipal Court of Bluefield, West Virginia has the authority and jurisdiction to order 

the destruction of vicious animals pursuant to its validly enacted Ordinance Section 4-49. 

The Circuit Court correctly ruled that the West Virginia Legislature specifically granted 

municipalities the authority to order the destruction of vicious and dangerous animals. 

See W. Va. Code § 8-12-5(26). The Circuit Court was also correct in determining that § 

4-49 of the City of Bluefield's Code of Ordinances is not inconsistent with, or in conflict 

with West Virginia Code § 19-20-20 (1981). 

a. 	 Municipal Courts in West Virginia have jurisdiction to order the 
destruction of a vicious and dangerous animal. 

As noted by the Circuit Court, Article VIII, §11 of the West Virginia 

Constitution empowers the West Virginia Legislature to provide for the establishment 

of courts in cities, towns, and municipalities and provides that such courts "shall have 
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jurisdiction to enforce municipal ordinances." Const. Art VIII, §11. The Legislature 

enacted Chapter 8 of the West Virginia Code to create and govern Municipal 

Corporations. W. Va. Code § 8-1-1 (1969) et seq. Specifically, West Virginia Code § 8

12-5(26) provides municipalities in West Virginia with the express power "to regulate or 

prohibit the keeping of animals or fowls and to provide for the impounding, sale or 

destruction of animals or fowls kept contrary to law or found running at large." 

(emphasis added). 

In response to the authority granted by § 8-12-5(26), the City of Bluefield 

enacted Ordinance § 4-49, which states: 

"No person shall own, keep or harbor any dangerous animal known by 
him to be vicious, dangerous, or in the habit of biting or attacking 
persons, whether or not such dog wears a tag or muzzle, and upon 
satisfactory proof that such animal is vicious, dangerous, or in the habit of 
biting or attacking persons, municipal judge may order any police officer 
or the animal control officer to cause such animal to be killed. Vicious or 
dangerous animals are declared to be a public nuisance and a menace to 

the public safety". 


See Exhibit 1, Legal Authorities, <]I 4. 


The Petitioner, who was represented by counsel, entered a plea of guilty 


to violating § 4-49, and based upon her admission that that the dog was vicious, the 

Municipal Court found and adjudicated the dog to be vicious, dangerous or in the habit 

of biting or attacking persons and ordered the dog to be destroyed. Based upon the 

facts that the Petitioner's dog attacked Bluefield's Animal Control officer; that the 

Petitioner admitted by plea that the dog in question is a dangerous and vicious animal; 

and that the Petitioner had prior knowledge that the dog would bite, the Municipal 

Court was clearly within its authority to order the animal to be destroyed pursuant to 

Bluefield's Ordinance § 4-49, enacted by authority of West Virginia Code § 8-12-5(26). 
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Therefore, the Circuit Court correctly concluded that the Bluefield 

Municipal Court has the authority to order the destruction of a dangerous animal 

pursuant to the West Virginia Constitution and pursuant to West Virginia Code, and 

consequently, this Court should affirm the Circuit Court's Order 

b. 	 Section 4-49 of the Code of Ordinance of the City of Bluefield is 
not inconsistent with, or in conflict with West Virginia Code. 

The Circuit Court was also correct in its conclusion that § 4-49 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Bluefield is not in conflict with West Virginia Code § 19-20

20. The Petitioner asserts that the Bluefield Municipal Court lacked the required 

jurisdiction to order the destruction of the Petitioner's dog because § 4-49 conflicts with 

West Virginia Code § 19-20-20. However, not only is it is clear Bluefield has the 

authority to Order the destruction of vicious and dangerous animals, it is also dear that 

according to West Virginia Code § 8-1-2(9), § 4-49 of Bluefield's Code of Ordinances is 

not in conflict with West Virginia Code § 19-20-20. 

West Virginia Code § 19-20-20, titled "Keeping vicious dogs; humane 

officers may kill such dogs", states the following: 

Except as provided in section twenty-one of this article, no person shall 
own, keep or harbor any dog known by him to be vicious, dangerous, or 
in the habit of biting or attacking other persons, whether or not such dog 
wears a tag or muzzle. Upon satisfactory proof before a circuit court or 
magistrate that such dog is vicious, dangerous, or in the habit of biting or 
attacking other persons or other dogs or animals, the judge may 
authorize the humane officer to cause such dog to be killed. 

West Virginia Code § 8-1-2(9) provides the following definition: 

"Inconsistent or in conflict with" shall mean that a charter or ordinance 
provision is repugnant to the constitution of this state or to general law 
because such provision (i) permits or authorizes that which the 
constitution or general law forbids or prohlbits, or (ii) forbids or prohibits 
that which the constitution or general law permits or authorizes. 

Although the two animal code sections in question are almost identical, 

Petitioner argues that § 4-49 of Bluefield's Code of Ordinances is in conflict with West 
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Virginia Code § 19-20-20 because § 19-20-20 states that a circuit court or magistrate may 

authorize the humane officer to cause a vicious or dangerous dog to be killed, 

compared to § 4-49 stating that a municipal judge may order any police officer or the 

animal control officer to cause such animal to be killed. This alternative language 

providing the authority of a municipal judge to order the destruction of a vicious 

animal does not fall within the definition of "inconsistent or in conflict with" as 

provided by § 8-1-2(9) (1969) because § 19-20-20 does not "forbid or prohibit" a 

murucipal court judge in VVest Virginia from ordering the destruction of vicious or 

dangerous animals. It also cannot be reasonably interpreted that an Ordinance 

allowing a municipal court judge to order the destruction of a vicious or dangerous 

animal is "repugnant" to the general laws of West Virginia when the general law, W. 

Va. Code § 8-12-5(26) specifically provides municipal courts in West Virginia with the 

express authority to do that which what the Bluefield Ordinance § 4-49 provides. 

Bluefield's Ordinance § 4-49 is not repugnant to, inconsistent with, or in 

conflict with West Virginia law. Therefore, the Mercer County Circuit Court correctly 

concluded that the Bluefield Municipal Court has the authority and jurisdiction to order 

the destruction of the Petitioner's vicious and dangerous dog and this Court should 

affirm the Circuit Court's Order Denying the Petitioner's Appeal from the Municipal 

Court of the City of Bluefield. 

3. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT WAS CORRECT BY NOT CONDUCTING 
AN ADDITIONAL HEARING CONCERNING THE VICIOUSNESS 
OF THE DOG BECAUSE THE PETITIONER AGREED THAT THE 
SOLE QUESTION FOR THE CIRCUIT COURT WAS WHETHER 
THE MUNICIPAL COURT HAD THE AUTHORITY AND 
JURISDICTION TO ORDER THE DESTRUCTION OF A VICIOUS 
OR DANGEROUS ANIMAL. 

At 	the July 24th, 2013 appeal hearing before the Circuit Court, both 

counsel for the Petitioner and counsel for the Respondent "agreed that the sole 
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question for the Court is whether the Municipal Court has the authority and jurisdiction 

to enforce City Ordinance 4-49 by ordering the destruction of a vicious or dangerous 

animal." See Exhibit No.1, Background and Procedural History, at 3, and Appendix No. 

S at 12, ]3, and 14. In addition to the Circuit Court's above finding, after the Circuit 

Court required counsel for Petitioner and counsel for Respondent to submit 

Memoranda of Law regarding all issues of the appeal from the Municipal Court, 

counsel for the Petitioner specifically limited the issue for the Circuit Court to whether a 

municipal judge has the authority to order a dog to be destroyed: 

THE COURT: As I see it the only issue the Court has to answer in this is 
whether or not the City had the authority to order the destruction of the 
dog. I think that's the only issue really uh, I think the ... the plea itself I 
don't think the Court has the authority to disturb that because I think it's 
clear that guilty pleas cannot be appealed from City Court. 

MR. LINKOUS: May I reply to that briefly? 

THE COURT: Sure 

MR. LINKOUS: The Code says that the only time there can be an appeal 
from City Court case is when a City Court has done something that they 
don't have jurisdiction to do. 

THE COURT: And -

MR. LINKOUS: And I just want to frame the -

THE COURT: - which is the destruction of the dog is what you're saying. 

MR. LINKOUS: Right and I would just want to frame the issue. It's 
not...the issue is not does the City have authority to regulate it. It's does a 
municipal judge have the authority to order a dog be destroyed. 

THE COURT: Well and I think that is the only question that the Court has 
to answer-

MR. LINKOUS: I would agree with

THE COURT: - in this case. 

MR. LINKOUS: - That. That's the issue 
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MR. COCHRAN: I agree too, Your Honor. If the City has jurisdiction

THE COURT: The conviction stands regardless of what the Court orders. 

MR. COCHRAN: Exactly and if the City has jurisdiction to destroy this 
dog then she does not have the ability to appeal that guilty plea to this 
Court. That's... that's the City's position. 

See Appendix No.5 at 12, 13, and 14. 

After the Circuit Court issued its order and concluded that the City of 

Bluefield's Municipal Court has the jurisdiction and authority to order the destruction of 

Petitioner's vicious dog, Petitioner later filed a Motion for Additional Hearing asking 

the Circuit Court to address whether the Municipal Court's findings of viciousness were 

factually warranted, and whether Petitioner had a right to appeal that decision. See 

Appendix No.3. 

The Circuit Court did not hold another hearing. Another hearing was not 

necessary because after briefing the issue as to whether Petitioner had a right to appeal 

the order of the Municipal Court after her guilty plea, counsel for Petitioner specifically 

agreed that the sole issue before the Circuit Court was whether the Municipal Court 

had the authority and/ or jurisdiction to order the destruction of the Petitioner's dog. 

Further, the Circuit Court Order already addressed the issues raised by the Petitioner in 

her Motion for Additional Hearing in the Court's findings that the Petitioner admitted 

by plea that the dog was vicious; that the Municipal Court adjudicated the dog to be 

vicious; arid that the Municipal Court Ordered the dog to be destroyed. Finally, counsel 

for Petitioner agreed at the July 24th hearing that the Municipal Court's adjudication 

could not be appealed if the Circuit Court determined that the City had the authority to 

Order the destruction of the dog. See Appendix No.5. 

West Virginia Code § 8-34-1 (1998) provides that (a) Every person 

sentenced under this chapter by any mayor, acting in a judicial capacity, or municipal 
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court judge to confinement or to the payment of a fine may appeal that sentence to the 

circuit court as provided in this section. (emphasis added). This section further 

describes the process of appeal "When a jury trial is had... " See subsection (b); "when a 

nonjury trial is had... " see subsection (c); "In the case of an appeal of such proceeding 

tried before a jury ... " see subsections (e) and (f); and "In the case of an appeal of a 

Municipal Court proceeding tried without a jury .." see subsection (g). 

Here, the Petitioner pled guilty to harboring a vicious animal. She was 

not tried before a jury or tried without a jury. Therefore, subsection (h) applied to the 

Peti tioner, which provides the following: 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, there 
shall be no appeal from a plea of guilty where the defendant was 
represented by cOllnsel at the time the plea was entered: Provided, That the 
defendant shall have an appeal from a plea of guilty where an 
extraordinary remedy would lie or where the mayor or municipal court 
judge lacked jurisdiction. (emphasis added). 

Petitioner was represented by the Mercer County Public Defender's office 

throughout her appearances in the Municipal Court, including the date on which she 

entered a plea of Guilty to owning, keeping, and/ or harboring a dangerous animal. 

Petitioner and her attorney were aware of the potential consequences of the Petitioner's 

plea of guilty, as well as the Municipal Judge'S ability to destroy a vicious dog as it 

specifically states in the section of the Municipal Ordinance to which the Petitioner pled 

guilty that " ... municipal judge may order any police officer or the animal control 

officer to cause such animal to be killed." See Ordinance § 4-49 

Therefore, pursuant to West Virginia Code § 8-34-1(h), because Petitioner 

was represented by counsel, any appeal of the Petitioner's guilty plea and subsequent 

sentence and/ or order could occur only if an extraordinary remedy would lie or if the 

municipal court judge lacked jurisdiction. This Court has held that where the legislature 
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has prescribed limitations on the right to appeal, such limitations are exclusive and 

cannot be enlarged by the court. Ashby v. City of Fairmollt, supra, Sy!. Pt. 4. As the 

Circuit Court correctly concluded that the Municipal Court did have jurisdiction to 

order the destruction of the Petitioner's vicious animal, the Circuit Court was correct in 

denying the Petitioner's request for an additional hearing because the Petitioner did not 

have the right to appeal the sentence after her guilty plea, with the advise of counsel in 

the Municipal Court. 

Even though Petitioner had no right to appeal the findings, the Circuit 

Court set forth the undisputed facts in its order, that (1) the dog broke loose from its 

chain and attacked Officer Randall Thompson causing the officer to sustain injuries 

serious enough to require medical attention; (2) that the Petitioner had prior knowledge 

that the dog would bite; and (3) Petitioner, who was represented by counsel, entered a 

plea of guilty in the Municipal Court of Bluefield to owning, keeping, and/ or harboring 

a dangerous animal. Petitioner's motion for an additional hearing was a post-guilty 

plea, improper attempt to litigate the factual findings of the dog's viciousness, which 

was waived upon Petitioner entering a guilty plea to harboring a vicious dog. 

Petitioner waived the right to an evidentiary hearing on the issue of 

viciousness when she pled guilty to the charge in Municipal Court and agreed with the 

Circuit Court that the only issue for the Circuit Court was whether the City of Bluefield 

had the authority to order the destruction of a vicious animal. This Court should deny 

her appeal on this point and deem this alleged error as abandoned and/ or waived and 

affirm the decision of the Circuit Court. 

VII. CONCLUSION 

The Circuit Court of Mercer County, West Virginia correctly ruled in 

Denying the Petitioner's Appeal of the City of Bluefield Municipal Court and in refusing 
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to grant the Petitioner an additional hearing. Petitioner agreed with the Circuit Court 

and counsel for the City of Bluefield that the only issue in front of the Circuit Court was 

whether the City possessed the authority and/ or jurisdiction to order the destruction of 

a vicious animal. The Circuit Court correctly concluded that West Virginia 

municipalities have the authority to destroy dangerous animals and that Bluefield's 

Ordinance § 4-49 is not inconsistent with, or in conflict with West Virginia Code. 

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, this Court should deny the 

Petitioner's Brief and let stand the rulings of the Mercer County Circuit Court. 

CITY OF BLUEFIELD, 

By Counsel. 

~c::£v=-(
W.V. State Bar #10503 

Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Caruth, 


Moore, Kersey, & Stafford PLLC 

418 Bland Street 

P.O. Box 529 

Bluefield, WV 24701 

(304) 324-0304 
(304) 324-0362 fax

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